
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JANUARY 20, 2015 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

      INVOCATION /  Dr. Michael Huntley, Martin Luther Lutheran Church 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / January 5, 2015 

 Council Work Session Minutes / January 12, 2015   

       

PROCLAMATION:  Daphne High School Graduation Rate 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:     

  

A. Pre-Zoning:  George Kalasountas 

Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

Present Zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

Requested Zoning:  B-2, General Business / R-7(T), Townhouse / R-1, Low Density Single 

Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

Recommendation:  Three motions were made and failed which resulted in an unfavorable 

recommendation  

 

B. Annexation:  George Kalasountas 

            Property Located: On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

            Recommendation:  Favorable 

                

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry  

Review minutes / January 12
th

  

1.) Ordinances: 

a. Ordinance 2015-05: Grant Management for  the Tiawasee Creek Coastal Impact 

Assistance Program (CIAP) and National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) Grant 

Tiawasee Creek Restoration 

b. Ordinance 2015-06: Appropriating Funds for Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets 

along County Road 13 

c. Ordinance 2015-07: Appropriating Funds for Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs 

d. Ordinance 2015-08: Appropriating Funds for Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, 

Base & Pave (Project #04-2014-RE06) 

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a. Resolution 2015-05: Resolution for Adopting Purchasing Policies for the Tiawasee Creek 

Restoration Coastal Impact Assistance Coastal Impact Assistance Program’s (CIAP)  & 

National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) 

b. Resolution 2015-07: 2015-C-Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets Along CR1, 

(FEMA#4176-DR-AL) 

c. Resolution 2015-08: Bid: 2015-D-RE7-Piedmont Circle 



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          JANUARY 20, 2015  PAGE   2 
 

d. Resolution 2015-09: Bid: 2015-C-Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave 

Project (Proj#04-2015-RE06) 

e. Resolution 2015-10: A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Credit Card for the Public 

Works Deputy Director 

 

3.) Motions: 

a. Motion to continue the City’s insurance coverage with John A. Robertson Insurance 

Agency, Inc. for a total annual renewal cost of $554,575 and to enter a three (3) year 

contract in order to receive a 2.5 percent discount.   

 

b. Motion to reject the bid for 2015-B-Renovations to Fire Station #3 and to go back out to 

bid with alternates to include an exterior similar to Fire Station #2. 

 

4.) Financial Reports: 

a. Business License Report, December 2015 

b. Treasurer’s Report, December 2015 

c. Sales Tax, December 2015  

d. Lodging Tax, December 2015  

e. Lodging Tax Statement of Revenues over Expenditures, December 2015 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

Review minutes / January 5
th

  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell      

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

Review minutes / January 5
th

  

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

Review minutes / October 2, 2014 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway   

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Davis     

 

D. Library Board - Lake  

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott 

 

F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

 

G. Utility Board – Fry 

 

6. Mayor’s Report 

 

7. City Attorney’s Report 



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          JANUARY 20, 2015  PAGE   3 
 

 

MOTION: to accept the resignation of Suzanne Henson as Treasurer effective upon the start date of 

the Finance Director.   

 

MOTION: To approve an addendum to the video services agreement between Bellsouth 

Telecommunications, L.L.C. DBA AT&T Alabama and the City of Daphne. 

 

8. Department Heads Comments 

 

9. City Clerk’s Report 

 

 Parade Permit: Shadow Barons / Mardi Gras / February 14, 2015 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

 

A. Resolution 2015-03: ADEM 319 Tiawasee Creek Constructed Wetlands Grant Application 

 

B. Resolution 2015-04: Resolution in Support of the Combination of the City’s Coastal Impact 

Assistance Program (CIAP) Grant Funds with the Mobile Bay National Estuary Programs 

(MBNEP) National Fish And Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) Grant Funds to Restore an Impaired 

Segment of Tiawasee Creek 

 

C. Resolution 2015-05: Resolution for Adopting Purchasing Policies for the Tiawasee Creek 

Restoration Coastal Impact Assistance Coastal Impact Assistance Program’s (CIAP)  & National 

Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) 

 

D. Resolution 2015-06: Land Donation from Provision Investments LLC – Tiawasee Creek 

 

E. Resolution 2015-07: 2015-C-Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets Along CR13 

 

F. Resolution 2015-08: 2015-D-RE7-PIEDMONT CIRCLE 

 

G. Resolution 2015-09: 2015-C-Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave Project 

 

H. Resolution 2015-10: A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Credit Card for the Public Works 

Deputy Director 

 

 

ORDINANCES:  

 

        2
nd

  READ   

 

A. Ordinance 2015-02: Amending Ordinance 2004-52 the City of Daphne’s Job Classification Schedule  

 

 1
ST

 READ 



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          JANUARY 20, 2015  PAGE   4 
 

 

B. Ordinance 2015-03: Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located on the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at 

Renaissance Boulevard / George Kalasountas 

 

C. Ordinance 2015-04: Ordinance to Annex Property Contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of 

Daphne / Property Located on the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard / George 

Kalasountas 

 

D. Ordinance 2015-05: Grant Management for the Tiawasee Creek Coastal Impact Assistance Program 

(CIAP) and National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) Grant Tiawasee Creek Restoration 

 

E. Ordinance 2015-06: Appropriating Funds for Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets along County 

Road 13 

 

F. Ordinance 2015-07: Appropriating Funds for Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs 

 

G. Ordinance 2015-08: Appropriating Funds for Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave 

(Project #04-2014-RE06) 

 

H. Ordinance 2015-09: An Ordinance To Transition The Position Of Treasurer To The Finance Director  

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

 

 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 



JANUARY 5, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

 

There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

Rabbi Donald Kunstadt with Springhill Avenue Temple gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  none. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Vickie Hinman, 

HR Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; James White, Fire Chief; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant/Treasurer; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee and DRA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, BZA; Officer Caleb Reeves; Kevin 

Boucher, Adams & Reese; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Willie Williams, Baldwin County Martin 

Luther King Celebration Committee. 

 

Absent: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge.  

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

December 15, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes 

 

The December 15, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes were approved as written.  

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

No report.  The next meeting will be Monday, January 12
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

No report.  The next meeting will be January 20
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

No report. The next meeting will be January 20
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

1



JANUARY 5, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

The Committee met just before the Council meeting.  Meeting times have changed; all are invited to meetings 

which will now occur at 5:30 p.m. on the first Monday of the month.  The next meeting will be February 2
nd

 at 

5:30 p.m. 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting of the BZA will be on January 8
th

 at 6:00 p.m.  The Board has one item for consideration.   

 

B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be January 28
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be January 26
th

 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

There was no meeting in December.  The next meeting will be January 8
th

 at 4:00 p.m.  

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes from the November 20
th

 meeting are in the packet along with the staff report on the December 18
th

 

meeting. The next meeting will be January 22
nd

 at 5:00 p.m.   

     

 F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be January 14
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be January 28
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 
B.  City Attorney’s Report 

City Attorney Jay Ross reported that the Tiawassee lawsuit would go to non-jury trial at the Fairhope Satellite Courthouse 

at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, January 8
th
. 

 

C.   Department Head Comments 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – Reported that there were no major events over the holiday season. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – Thanked the Mayor’s Office, the Eastern Shore Chamber of 

Commerce, Chick-Fil-A, Market by the Bay, and Popeye’s for supplying meals to the City’s senior citizens 

during the holiday season.  He also reported that youth basketball would begin on Saturday, January 10
th

. 

  

2



JANUARY 5, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

     D.   City Clerk’s Report  
Assistant City Clerk Sarah Toulson introduced the following event permits for approval: 

1. Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / Mardi Gras / February 6, 2015 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the event permit for the Apollo’s Mystic 

Ladies Mardi Gras parade to be held February 6, 2015.   Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

     
2. 29

th
 Annual Baldwin County Martin Luther King, Jr. Celebration / January 19, 2015 

 

Councilman Lake addressed the Council regarding the history of the celebration.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the event permit for the 29
th

 Annual Baldwin 

County Martin Luther King Celebration to be held January 19, 2015.  Seconded by 

Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Council President Conaway opened the floor for public participation at 6:43 p.m. 

 

Willie Williams, 1513 Pollard Road – addressed the Council regarding the upcoming Martin Luther King, Jr. 

Celebration.  He invited everyone to attend the march on Monday, January 19
th

 and gave details regarding the 

program to occur at the Daphne Civic Center.   

 

Council President Conaway closed public participation at 6:46 p.m. 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
a.) Authorize Participation with the City of Troy, AL in a Grant Application 

      to the AL Department of Environmental Management for Funds to Engage 

      the Southeast Recycling Development Council to Perform a Study of 

      Recycling in Alabama. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2015-01 

 

b.)  Authorizing the Mayor to Apply for a Grant for a First Responder Safe Room 

       for Public Works through the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2015-02 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-01 AND 2015-02.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

3



JANUARY 5, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-01.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-02.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

a.)  Annexation:  Provision Investment, LLC / Property Located West of the Estates of  

       Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the Intersection of Park Drive and 

       Pollard Road. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-59        

 

b.)  ATRIP Project:  Roundabout CR 64 & CR 13 Baldwin County  

       Intergovernmental Project. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-60 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-59.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Councilman Scott noted that the Ordinance came through the Planning Commission with a favorable 

recommendation.  He also noted that the property in question was zoned R-3 in the County, and will 

come into the City zoned R-1, which is less restrictive. 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Ordinance 2014-59.  Seconded by Councilman 

Rudicell.  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-60.   Seconded by 

Councilman Lejeune.  

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

  

4



JANUARY 5, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-60.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lejeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Councilman Scott- Wished everyone a happy New Year. 

 

Councilman Lejeune- Wished everyone a happy New Year and reminded everyone that traffic would increase 

beginning Tuesday due to the return of students to school. 

 

Councilman Davis- Wished everyone a happy New Year.  In reference to the Buildings and Property 

Committee meeting, he mentioned that though the City is presented with wonderful opportunities, sometimes 

they do not come with easy solutions.  Councilman Davis commended the new committee structure as helpful, 

as this was the first time the new schedule had been used.  Lastly, he stated that he looks forward to working 

with his colleagues in 2015. 

 

Councilman Lake- Spoke to the Martin Luther King, Jr. Celebration march as one of the longest running 

marches in the country and encouraged the Council as well as the general public to attend. 

 

Mayor Haygood – Expressed that he was glad to see everyone in attendance at the meeting, with the hope that 

everyone had a safe and enjoyable holiday season.  He also expressed his hopes that 2015 would be a 

productive year for all. 

 

Council President Conaway- Wished everyone a happy new year and encouraged her colleagues to participate 

in Martin Luther King, Jr. Celebration march. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:57 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Sarah Toulson,      Tommie Conaway,     

Assistant City Clerk     Council President 

5



JANUARY 12, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Suzanne Henson, 

Senior Accountant/Treasurer; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese; Don Oulette, BZA; Vickie 

Hinman, Human Resources Director; Gigi Armbrecht, Regional Director AT&T Alabama. 

 

Absent:   Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk. 

 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. AT&T FRANCHISE AGREEMENT: Jay Ross 

 

Jay Ross updated the Council on the status of the AT&T Franchise Agreement.  The primary 

provisions of the agreement discussed were the extension period, PEG (public, educational, 

governmental) channels available for city use, audits, and additional user fees.  Mr. Ross 

informed the Council that he would ensure that the agreement contained a provision for a five-

year extension with a four-year option for the City, and the inclusion of free PEG channels. 

 

2. SOCRATA FINANCIAL SOFTWARE 

 

The Council discussed the software program as a tool to encourage transparency and the 

possible timeline for moving forward with the possible acquisition of the software in light of the 

hiring process for a new Finance Director. 
 

3. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY  

 

Mayor Haygood mentioned that he had one item for the Council’s consideration that was a matter of 

executive session. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn and enter into Executive Session to 

discuss the good name and character of a potential employee.  The session will be for 

10 minutes.   Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the foregoing is an appropriate reason to enter into 

Executive Session according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye    Scott   Aye    

Rudicell  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake    Aye    Davis   Aye 

Fry    Aye     

 

6



JANUARY 12, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

7:13 P.M. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Sarah Toulson,          Tommie Conaway,                                                                 

Assistant City Clerk                                                  Council President                                             

                                              

7



City of Daphne 

 

CONGRATULATIONS 

 
Daphne High School  

 

WHEREAS, education involves a community and begins in early 

childhood, the Daphne feeder pattern works as a team to achieve successful 

outcomes for all of our students; and, 

 

WHEREAS, upon the completion of the 2013-2014 school year, the 

graduation rate for the state of Alabama was 86 percent; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the graduation rate for the Baldwin County School District 

for the 2013-2014 school year was 84 percent; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Daphne High School was one of only two schools in the 

Baldwin County School District with a graduation rate exceeding 90 

percent; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council would like to acknowledge the 

efforts of the school for achieving a 91 percent graduation rate for the 

2013-2014 school year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of City of Daphne, Alabama 

do hereby extend sincere congratulations to Daphne High School for achieving a 

91 percent graduation rate. 

 

This certificate of Congratulations is presented by the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and affixed with the official seal this 20
th
 day of January, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ________________________________  

 Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 ________________________________  

    Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, January 5, 2014 

4:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Robin Lejeune; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; 

Fire Chief James White; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City 

Clerk (recording secretary). 

Absent: Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Mayor Dane Haygood. 

The meeting was brought to order at 4:36 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public participation 

 

No one spoke. 

2. Approval of minutes: December 1, 2014 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the December 1, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. 

Davis.  Motion carried unanimously.  

3. Civic Center & Bayfront report (December): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her December report.  December 2014 revenue 

totaled $9,908.00, a decrease from December 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at 

$40,749.00, below figures listed for FY2014.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits 

for December stood at $9,115.00, a slight decrease from last year, and that the Civic Center has 

seen seven events during December, for a total of seven days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for December totaling 

$7,724.00, above December 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $24,714.00, an 

increase from 2013 numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for December 

stood at $3,178.00, and that Bayfront Pavilion has seen 11 events during December, for a total of 

11 days used, not including setup days.  In December both facilities will be closed for two days. 

 

In addition, she updated the Committee on the following: 

 Nine applications have been received for the part time assistant position and are 

currently under review. 

 List of public events for January through June 2015 was given; notable events were the 

Library’s History Lecture Series and the Baldwin County Martin Luther King Jr. March.   

67



 Capital Improvement for Bayfront: Ms. Thigpen showed a sample of the flooring to be 

installed at Bayfront Pavillion and noted that Bayfront would be closed for two weeks for 

this project. 

 A bride recently sent a thank you note with a glowing review of her wedding reception 

held at the Daphne Civic Center.  Margaret shared her words with the Committee. 

 

4. Building inspection monthly reports (December):  Richard Merchant 

 

Richard Merchant reviewed the building report for the month of December.  He reported 18 new 

residential construction projects initiated, and one new commercial development.  The 

department issued 105 permits during December, with a total job valuation of $5,494,435.59 

with permit fees totaling $39,737.33.   

 

5. Bayfront property 

 

Richard Johnson reported that the recreational trails grant project is currently in full 

engineering, and he hopes to have plans ready for review in March. 

 

6. Use of City Hall facilities 

 

Sarah Toulson referenced updated form in packet per suggestions of City Attorney and 

Committee.  Will report on use of chambers at next month’s meeting. 

7. Fire Station #3 Update: Richard Johnson 

 

Mr. Johnson gave a brief refresh regarding the history and current issues present in Fire Station 

#3.  He reported that bids for the repair work came in much higher than expected.  The 

committee discussed the cost of the project and the cost-effectiveness of demolishing the 

building and starting new instead of repairing the existing structure. 

 

8. Other Business 

 

Ashley Campbell reported that she had submitted a resolution regarding land donations totaling 

23 acres on Park Drive to the Public Works Committee.  A stream restoration project through 

the Coastal Impact Assistance Funding is included in the project.  This would have no out of 

pocket costs to the City as the current land owner is handling the costs. 

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:30, motion by 

Mr. Rudicell and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

 

 

68



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:30 PM on January 5, 2015 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 Meeting was called to order at 5:35 p.m. 

 Committee Members Present: Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron 

Scott, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Richard D. Johnson-Public Works Director, Dorothy 

Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee.   

 Others Present: Councilman Joe Davis, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Mayor Dane Haygood, Ashley 

Campbell. 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Work Request Report - The report for November 2014 was reviewed.  

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – The report for November 2014 was reviewed.   

C. Correspondence – No Correspondence. 

D. Public Participation – No one present to address the committee. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – The minutes from the November 17, 2014 meeting were reviewed and approved. 

Motion by Tommie Conaway, Seconded by John Scott to approve the minutes as presented.  

Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Report – No Report. 

C. Street Sweeper Report – The November 2014 report was reviewed by the committee.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

No Report. 

 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Richard reported that everything is quiet right now. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A.   Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) – November 

The committee reviewed the November report.  Richard stated he and Tracey Miller continue 

to meet with potential vendors and gathering information.  Tarpon wants to stay in as a buyer 

also. We have not yet received payment from Tarpon for October and November.  That 

revenue will be reported once payment is received. 

Mr. Scott asked about the City of Troy Participation Grant Application/Resolution item that 

appears on the City Council Agenda. Richard explained that we are acting as a co-sponsor 

with the City of Troy for an ADEM grant that will prepare an economic model to study the 

economic impact of recycling on the State of Alabama.  Our participation will not cost us 

anything; we are merely co-sponsors.   

 B.  Solid Waste New Customer Report – November 2014 

The committee reviewed the November report. Mr. LeJeune asked if new residents were given 

the option to get Recycle carts.  Mr. Johnson stated that all new customers get a Garbage & 

Recycling cart delivered when they set up utility service. 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes - December 2014 meeting minutes were reviewed. No questions or comments. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from December 1, 2014 meeting was reviewed.  Dorothy Morrison said the holiday 

decorations downtown were spectacular and everything looked beautiful.  

The Mayor and Richard have been in communication about the new signs for the city and  

133



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:30 PM on January 5, 2015 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 

 

work continues to on the measurements and placement of new signs. The Committee is 

contacting businesses along Highway 98 near the crossovers to invite them to ‘Adopt a 

Median’ and pay for the flowers. Dorothy asked that committee members contact her if they 

know anyone from those businesses so they can be contacted in February.  

Richard reported that the Beautification Committee will be conducting a Litter Assessment as 

a part of our Keep Daphne Beautiful application. Locations have been selected but if anyone 

knows of an area that is littered, please contact Richard so the area can be surveyed. The 

assessments will take place in during the month of January. Dorothy will be attending the 

Keep America Beautiful convention later this month. 

Mardi Gras flags have been ordered and received. 

The Beautification Committee continues to seek new members. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Next meeting – January 26, 2015. 

Ashley Campbell reviewed the listed resolutions. 

1) Resolution: Land Donation from Provision Investments LLC – Tiawasee Creek. 

Resolution to annex twenty three acres of wetlands will be presented this evening at City 

Council. We have been working with Jeff Lane on this resolution. It is a 23 acre parcel that 

abuts Pollard and Hwy 90.  It’s an old abandon dirt pit with a lot of wetlands. It’s a great piece 

of property and we have money to restore it.  Richard asked that language concerning 

restoration and drainage be added to the resolution.  This will be on the January 20th council 

agenda for a first read. 

Motion by John Lake, seconded by Tommie Conaway to favorably recommend to the 

Council the approval of this resolution.   All in favor.  Motion carried. 

2) Resolution and Ordinance for CIAP NFWF Tiawasee Creek Stream Restoration 

Project.  

Resolution:  Support the Combination of the City’s Coastal Impact Assistance Program 

(CIAP) Grant Funds with the Mobile Bay National Estuary Programs (MBNEP), 

National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) Grant Funds to Restore An Impaired 

Segment of Tiawasee Creek.  In 2009 this was a $200,000 project but has now grown to 

$1,000,000 because we have experienced several 100 year and one 500 year rains. We are 

receiving a $500,000 grant from Baldwin County and the State of Alabama to restore 

Tiawasee Creek. The National Fish and Wildlife Foundation granted the Mobile Bay National 

Estuary Program $500,000 to address a restoration in a similar area. We need to combine the 

two monies to do the project. The easiest and possibly only way we can do this is if the 

Mobile Bay National Estuary Program gives us their $500,000, which is doable through the 

grant process. Attorneys have been reviewing this and recommend that we bring in a Grant 

Manager to oversee the local, state and federal grant requirements. The purpose of this 

resolution is to request permission to combine the two grants. If permission is granted we 

would work on an ordinance that would allow for the hiring of a Grant Manager for about 

$25,000 to be paid by the City of Daphne to assist us in the project. 

Ordinance: Grant Management for the Tiawassee Creek Coastal Impact Assistance 

Program (CIAP) and National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) Grant Tiawassee 

Creek Restoration 

Motion by Ron Scott, seconded by Tommie Conaway to favorably recommend to the 

Finance Committee to appropriate the $25,000 for the grant manager and to recommend to 

the City Council the approval of this resolution and ordinance.  All in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

 

134



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:30 PM on January 5, 2015 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 

3) Resolution: Proposed ADEM 319 Grant Tiawasee Creek Constructed Wetlands 

Application.  

Ashley Campbell discussed the project.  Trey Jinright with Jade Consulting drew us up a free 

set of plans for constructed wetlands to treat storm water and headwaters issues of Tiawasee 

Creek. Ashley and Richard have discussed some ideas including purchasing the pond and 

retrofitting it, which would take care of the beaver problem we have. This grant is a 60/40 

with the city doing in-kind services.  Sidewalks would be installed from County Road 13 to 

Daphne Utilities new facility on Well Road to educate the public on porous concrete.  This 

would also go to the dog park along with a boardwalk that goes behind the school to a pond. 

Motion by Ron Scott, seconded by Tommie Conaway to favorably recommend to the City 

Council to approve this resolution.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT    

A. Hatch Mott MacDonald – No report. 

B. HMR – No report. 

C. Preble-Rish – No report. 

D. Jade Consulting – No report. 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting is February 2, 2015. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.n. 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



ADDENDUM TO VIDEO SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS ADDENDUM TO VIDEO SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Addendum”) dated 

______________, 2015, (“Effective Date”) is made by and between BellSouth 

Telecommunications, LLC d/b/a AT&T Alabama (“AT&T Alabama”), and the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation (“City”).  AT&T Alabama and City shall sometimes be 

referred to separately as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, City of Daphne and AT&T Alabama entered into an agreement styled 

Agreement on April 9, 2009 (“Agreement”), regarding the provision by AT&T Alabama of its 

integrated Internet Protocol (“IP”) enabled broadband platform of voice, data and video services 

(“IP Network”), the video component of which is a switched, two-way, point-to-point and 

interactive service (“IP Video Service”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, paragraph 1 set for the term of the “Agreement” to expire effective May 1, 

2014, but allows for extending the “Agreement” upon written mutual agreement of the parties; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, City of Daphne and AT&T Alabama desire to extend the terms of the 

“Agreement” for an additional  period effective May 1, 2014 and running until December 31, 

2019 and agree that there is sufficient mutual consideration for renewing and extending the term 

of the “Agreement.” 

 

AGREEMENTS 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and in 

the original “Agreement,” and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City of Daphne and AT&T Alabama agree as 

follows: 

 

 1. Paragraph 1 of the “Agreement” is to be amended by changing the date of 

termination from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2019.  Paragraph 1 is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

 

“Term.  Except as described in paragraph 1(a) below, the term of this Agreement 

shall be from the Effective Date of this Agreement through December 31, 2019.  

The term may be extended upon mutual agreement of the parties in writing.” 

 

2. The following paragraph 23 is added to the Agreement: 

 

“23.   AT&T, at the City’s request, will, collectively with all other video 

Providers,  provide the City free of charge one (1) basic video installation and 

monthly service to each public school, municipal government building, fire 

building, police building, and library building that is passed by AT&T’s system 

142



and where such service is available.  No more than one (1) provider shall be 

required provide the service required by this Section 23 to any given location.  

The City will confer with all providers and determine the assignments in a 

reasonable manner.  AT&T shall not seek to offset recurring costs associated with 

the requirements of this Section against the fees due under Section 2 of this 

Agreement, nor shall AT&T impose such costs on the schools or institutions 

receiving such free installations and service.  AT&T may offset any non-recurring 

installation and non-recurring repair of service charges provided pursuant to this 

section against any fees due under Section 2 of this Agreement.  Such charges 

shall not exceed the installation charge applicable to residential customers or, at 

such time as a business product is available, to business customers.  Additional 

video programming, Internet access, voice over IP (VoIP), or other options or 

services offered by AT&T as part of the U-Verse offering beyond the scope of 

services provided in this Section may be separately requested and ordered by the 

City, subject to their availability at any particular location.  Such additional 

services requested by the City shall be at the sole cost of the City and payable 

pursuant to the customary billing and payment terms consistent with available 

AT&T U-Verse offerings to business subscribers. 

  

 2. Unless amended by the terms of this Addendum, all other terms and conditions of 

the “Agreement,” shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect throughout the extended 

term.  In the event the terms and conditions of the “Agreement” conflict with the terms of this 

Addendum, this Addendum shall be deemed to supersede and override the terms of the 

“Agreement.” 

  

 

 3. This Addendum incorporates and includes all prior and contemporaneous 

negotiations, correspondence, conversations, agreements and understandings between the parties 

concerning the subject matter hereof.  Otherwise, no deviation from the terms hereof shall be 

predicated upon any prior or contemporaneous representations, agreements or understandings, 

whether oral or written. 

 

 

(Signature page immediately follows) 

  

143



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, 

have executed this Agreement and made the same effective as of this ____ day of 

______________, 2015. 

 

AT&T Alabama 

 

By:       

Name: Fred McCallum, Jr. 

Title:  President – AT&T Alabama 

 

State of Alabama  ) 

County of ____________ ) 

 

 Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of _____________, 2015. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

        NOTARY PUBLIC    SEAL 

 

       My Commission Expires: _____________ 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

 

By:       

Name: Dane Haygood 

Title:  Mayor 

 

State of Alabama  ) 

County of ____________ ) 

 

 Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of _____________, 2015. 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

         NOTARY PUBLIC   SEAL  

 

        My Commission Expires: ___________ 
 
 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

City of Daphne, Alabama        1119052-2 

144



145



146



RESOLUTION 2015-03 

 

ADEM 319 TIAWASEE CREEK CONSTRUCTED WETLANDS GRANT APPLICATION  

 

WHEREAS, the coastal Alabama is blessed with estuaries that support both fresh and saltwater species 

and serve as nursery habitat for many commercially and recreationally important fish and shellfish; and 

WHEREAS, the Tensaw Appalache watershed,  located in Baldwin County, AL is within the Mobile 

Bay estuary and includes the sub-watersheds of D'Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek and Joes Branch; and 

WHEREAS, the Watershed Management Plan: D'Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek, and Joe's Branch 

Watersheds was published in 2010 to guide restoration activities in areas of environmental degradation 

within the sub-watersheds of D’Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek and Joe's Branch; and 

WHEREAS, this plan recommends and identifies areas for stabilizing of stream segments and 

improving stormwater management in the Tiawasee sub-watershed; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s goal is to support environmental endeavors which will improve water quality 

and lessen the potential for impacts to the City’s watersheds which are part of the greater Mobile Bay 

Watershed.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that the City agrees to allow the Environmental Programs Manager to submit a 

grant application to improve conditions in the headwaters of Tiawasee Creek to the ADEM 319 Grant 

Program.  If the assistance is granted to the City, the project will be brought back to the council for 

review, and financial appropriations. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS               DAY OF                      , 2015. 

 

 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 

147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



RESOLUTION 2015-04 

 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE COMBINATION OF THE CITY’S COASTAL 

IMPACT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CIAP) GRANT FUNDS WITH THE MOBILE 

BAY NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAMS (MBNEP) NATIONAL FISH AND 

WILDLIFE FOUNDATION (NFWF) GRANT FUNDS TO RESTORE AN IMPAIRED 

SEGMENT OF TIAWASEE CREEK 

 

WHEREAS, coastal Alabama is blessed with estuaries that support both fresh and saltwater 

species and serve as nursery habitat for many commercially and recreationally important fish and 

shellfish; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Tensaw Appalache watershed, located in Baldwin County, AL is within the 

Mobile Bay estuary and includes the sub-watersheds of D'Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek and Joes 

Branch; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Watershed Management Plan: D'Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek, and Joe's 

Branch Watersheds was published in 2010 to guide restoration activities in areas of 

environmental degradation within the sub-watersheds of D’Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek and 

Joe's Branch; and  

 

WHEREAS, this plan recommends and identifies areas for stabilizing stream segments and 

improving stormwater management in the Tiawasee sub-watershed; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne supports efforts to reduce excessive sediment loads by 

restoring stream segments as indicated in the Watershed Management Plan (2010); and  

 

WHEREAS the City of Daphne applied for CIAP assistance in the amount of $250,000.00 from 

the State of Alabama Department of Natural Resources and Conservation in 2010 for a 

hydrologic study, model, and a portion of the restoration of an Un-named Tributary to D’Olive 

Creek and was awarded Tier 2 grant plan status in 2011; and  

 

WHEREAS the City of Daphne applied for CIAP assistance in the amount of $250,000.00 from 

the County in 2010 for a portion of the restoration of an Un-named Tributary to D’Olive Creek 

and was awarded Tier 1 grant plan status in 2011; and  

 

WHEREAS, in 2013 the City of Daphne was awarded both grants totaling $500,000.00; 

requiring no monetary or in-kind labor match unless additional engineering cost or grant 

management are needed to develop the model and/or implement the stream restoration; and  

 

WHEREAS, after the April 30, 2014 federally declared National Flood Disaster, the Tiawasee 

creek stream impairments multiplied resulting in a need for additional funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, MBNEP has received funding from the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation 

Gulf Environmental Benefit Fund (NFWF) to conduct restoration activities in D’Olive Creek 

157



Watershed to improve water quality and clarity necessary for re-establishing submerged aquatic 

vegetation (SAV) beds in the upper Bay; and  

 

WHEREAS, The NFWF grant includes $550,000.00 to restore an impaired segments of 

Tiawasee Creek; and  

 

WHEREAS, The MBNEP agrees to give through contractual agreement the $550,000.00 to the 

City of Daphne to combine with the City’s $500,000.00 CIAP funds to complete the stream 

restoration project; and 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne will take the combined NFWF and CIAP funds and implement 

the Tiawasee restoration project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE that the City of Daphne shall implement the approved grant contracts with the 

following condition:  

 

The Mayor and the Environmental Programs Manager are hereby authorized to execute such 

proposal and any and all additional documents necessary to carry out the purpose of 

requesting such funds from Baldwin County, the Alabama Department of Conservation and 

Natural Resources and the MBNEP.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 20
th

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015.  

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION  

 

 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

  Dane Haygood, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

_______________________________  

Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

158



RESOLUTION 2015-05 
 

RESOLUTION FOR ADOPTING PURCHASING POLIES FOR THE TIAWASEE 

CREEK RESTORATION COASTAL IMPACT ASSISTANCE COASTAL IMPACT 

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM’S (CIAP) & NATIONAL FISH AND WILDLIFE 

FOUNDATION (NFWF) 

 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne was has received Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) 

subgrants from the Baldwin County Commission and the State of Alabama for Restoration of an 

Unnamed Tributary to Tiawasse Creek; and  

WHEREAS, CIAP funds are made available through the United States Department of Interior 

and it is a CIAP Program requirement that municipal governments participating in the program 

adopt and implement a Policy regarding Standards of Conduct and a Policy regarding 

Procurement Methods; and 

NOW, THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED that the Daphne City Council has adopted a Policy 

regarding Standards of Conduct and a Policy regarding Procurement Methods that comply with 

the applicable laws, rules and regulations of the CIAP program; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of these documents are attached to this Resolution, 

the Mayor is authorized to sign these documents on behalf of the City, and a copy of these 

documents will be kept on file at City Hall and will be available for review by the public as 

requested. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

  DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

Attest:        

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

159



City of Daphne 

Methods of Procurement Policy 

 

The City of Daphne, will follow the procurement methods described below and will ensure 

that all contracts will be in writing, include the appropriate state, federal, and local clauses, 

and that all contracts will be authorized by the Daphne City Council.  Further, the City will 

ensure that the procurement of labor, services, or materials will be conducted in accordance 

with these local written procedures that conform to 2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 

200, 215, 220, 225, and 230 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; Final Rule, Title 41, Code of Alabama (Bid Law), 

and Title 39, Code of Alabama (Public Works Law).  All procurement follows one of the 

following methods: 

 

1. Small Purchase 
 

a. See State Bid Law (Title 41, Code of Alabama) 2 CFR Chapter I, and 

Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 220, 225, and 230), 

 

1. Price or rate quotations for purchases or contracts with an 

aggregate cost $15,000 or less must be obtained from at least three 

(3) qualified sources.  (No purchase or contract involving an 

amount in excess of $15,000 shall be divided into parts involving 

amounts $15,000 or less for the purpose of avoiding the 

requirements of the Bid Law.) File documentation is required. 

 

b. See Public Works Law (Title 39, Code of Alabama) and 2 CFR Chapter I, 

and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 220, 225, and 230, 

 

1. Price or rate quotations for professional services with an aggregate 

cost of $100,000 or less must be obtained from at least three (3) 

qualified sources.  File documentation and contract for 

professional services are required. 

 

2. Contracts for public works involving $50,000 or less may be let 

without advertising or sealed bids.  Price or rate quotations must 

be obtained from at least three (3) sources.  (No public work 

involving a sum in excess of $50,000 shall be split into parts 

involving sums of $50,000 or less for the purposes of evading the 

Public Works Law.)  File documentation is required. 

 

160



2. Sealed Bids 

 

a. See State Bid Law (Title 41, Code of Alabama), 

 

1. All purchases in excess of $15,000 shall be advertised by posting 

notice thereof on a bulletin board maintained outside the 

purchasing office and in any other manner and for any length of 

time as may be determined.  Sealed bids shall also be solicited by 

sending notice by mail or other electronic means to all persons, 

firms, or corporations who have filed a request in writing that 

they be listed for solicitation on bids for the particular items that 

are set forth in the request. All bids shall be sealed when received 

and shall be opened in public at the hour stated in the notice.   

 

2. All original bids together with all documents pertaining to the 

award of the contract shall be retained in accordance with a 

retention period of at least seven years established by the Local 

Government Records Commission and shall be open to public 

inspection.   

 

b. See Public Works Law (Title 39, Code of Alabama), 

 

1. Definition of Public Works:  The construction, repair, renovation, 

or maintenance of public buildings, structures, sewers, 

waterworks, roads, bridges, docks, underpasses, and viaducts as 

well as any other improvement to be constructed, repaired, 

renovated, or maintained on public property and to be paid, in 

whole or in part, with public funds or with financing to be retired 

with public funds in the form of lease payments or otherwise.   

 

2. Before entering into any contract for a public works involving an 

amount in excess of $50,000, the awarding authority shall 

advertise for sealed bids. If the awarding authority is the state or a 

county, or an instrumentality thereof, it shall advertise for sealed 

bids at least once each week for three consecutive weeks in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the county or counties in 

which the improvement or some part thereof, is to be made.  If the 

awarding authority is a municipality, or an instrumentality 

thereof, it shall advertise for sealed bids at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation published in the municipality 

where the awarding authority is located. If no newspaper is 

published in the municipality, the awarding authority shall 

advertise by posting notice thereof on a bulletin board maintained 

outside the purchasing office and in any other manner and for the 

length of time as may be determined. In addition to bulletin board 

notice, sealed bids shall also be solicited by sending notice by 

161



mail to all persons who have filed a request in writing with the 

official designated by the awarding authority that they be listed 

for solicitation on bids for the public works contracts indicated in 

the request.  For all public works contracts involving an estimated 

amount in excess of $500,000, awarding authorities shall also 

advertise for sealed bids at least once in three newspapers of 

general circulation throughout the state.  

 

3. The advertisements shall briefly describe the improvement, state 

that plans and specifications for the improvement are on file for 

examination in a designated office of the awarding authority, state 

the procedure for obtaining plans and specifications, state the time 

and place in which bids shall be received and opened, and identify 

whether prequalification is required and where all written 

prequalification information is available for review. All bids shall 

be opened publicly at the advertised time and place. 

 

3. Competitive Negotiations 

 

The technique of competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one source 

submitting an offer, and either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract is 

awarded. It is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed 

bids. If this method is used, the following requirements apply: 

 

a. See 2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, Subpart D—Post Federal 

Award, §200.320 Methods of procurement to be followed. 

 

b. Requests for proposals will be publicized and identify all evaluation 

factors and their relative importance.  

 

c. Proposals will be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources. 

 

d. Grantees will have a method for conducting technical evaluations of the 

proposals received and for selecting awardees. 

 

e. Awards will be made to the responsible firm whose proposal is most 

advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered. 

 

f. Grantees may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-

based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional 

services whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most 

qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and 

reasonable compensation. The method, where price is not used as a 

selection factor, can only be used in procurement of A/E professional 

services. It cannot be used to purchase other types of services though A/E 

firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort. 

162



 

4. Noncompetitive Negotiations 

 

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals or “sole source” is procurement through 

solicitation of a proposal from only one source, or after solicitation of a number of 

sources, competition is determined inadequate.  Procurement by noncompetitive 

proposals may be used only when the award of a contract is infeasible under small 

purchase procedures, sealed bids or competitive proposals and one of the following 

circumstances applies: the item is available only from a single source; the public 

exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from 

competitive solicitation; the awarding agency authorizes noncompetitive proposals; and 

after solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate. 

 

a. Proper documentation that one or more of the above circumstances 

existed. 

 

b. There is no conflict of interest by the parties involved. 

 

c. Cost analysis, i.e., verifying the proposed cost data, the projections of the 

data, and the evaluation of the specific elements of costs and profits, is 

required. 

 

5. Price/Cost Analysis 

 

Grantees must perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement 

action including contract modifications. The method and degree of analysis is dependent 

on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation, but as a starting point, 

grantees must make independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals.  

 

a. A cost analysis must be performed when the offeror is required to submit 

the elements of his estimated cost, e.g., under professional, consulting, and 

architectural engineering services contracts.  

 

b. A cost analysis will be necessary when adequate price competition is 

lacking, and for sole source procurements, including contract 

modifications or change orders, unless price reasonableness can be 

established on the basis of a catalog or market price of a commercial 

product sold in substantial quantities to the general public or based on 

prices set by law or regulation.  

 

c. A price analysis will be used in all other instances to determine the 

reasonableness of the proposed contract price. 

 

d. Grantees will negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each 

contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where cost 

analysis is performed.  

163



 

e. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration will be given to the 

complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, 

the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its 

record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding 

geographical area for similar work.   

 

f. Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under grants will be 

allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates included 

in negotiated prices are consistent with Federal cost principles. Grantees 

may reference their own cost principles that comply with the applicable 

Federal cost principles.   

 

g. The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost 

methods of contracting shall not be used. 

 

 

164



City of Daphne 

Standards of Conduct Policy 

 

No employee, officer, or agent of the City of Daphne shall participate in selection, or in the 

award or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or 

apparent, would be involved (such a conflict would arise when:  the employee, officer, or agent; 

or any member of his immediate family, his partner, or an organization which employs, or is 

about to employ, any of the above, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for 

award).  

 

The officers, employees, or agents of the City of Daphne, will neither solicit nor accept 

gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or 

parties to sub-agreements.  (The City of Daphne may set minimum rules where the financial 

interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value.) 

 

To the extent permitted by state (Title 36, Chapter 25, Alabama Code) or local law or 

regulations, such standards of conduct will provide for penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary 

actions for violations of such standards by the officers or employees of the City of Daphne, or 

agents, or by contractors or their agents.   

 

 

 
 

 

 

165



RESOLUTION 2015-06 
 

DONATION OF REAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

BY PROVISIONS INVESTMENT, LLC 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne has hereto been offered to receive 

without payment of consideration, a parcel of unimproved,  real property situated within the City 

by Provision Development, LLC, and use to be restricted to a park, nature preserve, nature walkway 

and watershed enhancement in its undeveloped state; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City as undertaken a review as to the title of the real property ascertained 

any environmental issues upon the parcel of real property, reviewed the Baldwin County Tax 

Assessor records as to value and the parcel has been appraised as to the fair market value; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received information that there are no adverse title 

issues and as a result has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to accept the parcel 

into the City subject to the limitation as proposed by the donors to include no construction of any 

buildings on the property, and that the property remain in its natural state or may be utilized as a 

watershed enhancement, park and/or nature trail. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA that i t  does hereby declare that i t  is in the best interest of the City and its 

citizens and does hereby accept the parcel of real property as offered by Provision Investments, LLC, 

subject to those limitations that the parcel be restricted for use as a watershed enhancement, park, 

nature trail, or left in its current undeveloped state and that the City accepts by appropriate 

conveyance instrument in a form approved by the City Attorney a Warranty Deed to the referenced 

parcels as described below: 

 

Legal Description: Lot 3 of the Preserve at Tiawasee, as recorded on 

slide 0002526-C in the probate office of Baldwin County, Al 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all interest in and to all oil, gas and 

other minerals in, on and/or under said property and all rights in 

connection therewith which may have been granted, reserved or 

leased to others by instruments of records in the Office of the Judge 

of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama; and 

 

SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1. Any and all easements, rights-of-way or restrictive covenants 

the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

affected the above described real property according to the records in 

 

 

 

  

 

166



 

2. That the real property shall be utilized by the Grantee only as: 

a) watershed enhancement 

b) nature preserve, 

c) nature walkway, 

d) or to remain in its current natural state. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute all 

such documentation as is necessary for the acceptance of the referenced parcel of real property. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Dane Haygood, 

Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, 

City Clerk 

 

167



RESOLUTION 2015-07 

 

2015-C-RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, DITCHES & INLETS ALONG CR13 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 

secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, 

DITCHES & INLETS ALONG CR13 will exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the RECONSTRUCTION OF 

FLUMES, DITCHES & INLETS ALONG CR13 and has determined that the bid as presented is 

reasonable (Construction-$313,355.75 + CE&I-$59,537.59 = $372,893.34 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS,  FEMA will  reimburse 75% and State of Alabama 12.5% of the project cost for the 

RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, DITCHES & INLETS ALONG CR13 project; and  

 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, DITCHES & 

INLETS ALONG CR13 WAY ROAD CROSSING be awarded to Ammons & Blackmon 

Construction LLC.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, that the City Council hereby accepts the bid from Ammons & Blackmon 

Construction LLC. in the amount of $313,355.75 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 

2015-C-RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, DITCHES & INLETS ALONG CR13.   

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 
 

 

      

                                                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                        _________________________________ 

                                                                           Dane Haygood, Mayor 

                                                                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

168



RESOLUTION 2015-08 

 

2015-D-RE7-PIEDMONT CIRCLE 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to secure 

competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that PIEDMONT CIRCLE will exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the PIEDMONT CIRCLE and has 

determined that the bid as presented is reasonable (Construction-$57,670.18 + CE&I-$27,075.93 = 

$84,746.11 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, FEMA will  reimburse 75% and State of Alabama 12.5% of the project cost for the 

PIEDMONT CIRCLE; and  

 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for PIEDMONT CIRCLE WAY ROAD CROSSING be 

awarded to Sunset Contracting, Inc. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, that the City Council hereby accepts the bid from Sunset Contracting, Inc. in the amount of 

$57,670.18 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2015-D-RE7 PIEDMONT CIRCLE.   

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                         _________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 

                                                                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

169



RESOLUTION 2015-09 

 

2015-C-ROLLING HILLS DRIVE (SOUTH) GRADE, DRAIN, BASE & PAVE PROJECT 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to secure 

competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that ROLLING HILLS DRIVE (SOUTH) GRADE, 

DRAIN, BASE & PAVE PROJECT will exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the ROLLING HILLS DRIVE 

(SOUTH) GRADE, DRAIN, BASE & PAVE PROJECT and has determined that the bid as presented is 

reasonable (Construction-$578,797.23 + CE&I-$112,843 = $691,640.23 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS,  FEMA and State of Alabama will reimburse for the Category D (Drainage) portion of the 

project cost for the ROLLING HILLS DRIVE (SOUTH) GRADE, DRAIN, BASE & PAVE PROJECT; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for ROLLING HILLS DRIVE (SOUTH) GRADE, DRAIN, 

BASE & PAVE PROJECT be awarded to John G. Walton Construction Company, Inc. . 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                                                

John G. Walton Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $578,797.23 as specified in BID 

SPECIFICATION NO. 2015-C- ROLLING HILLS DRIVE (SOUTH) GRADE, DRAIN, BASE & 

PAVE PROJECT.   

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                        _________________________________ 

                                                                            Dane Haygood, Mayor 

                                                                            

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

170



RESOLUTION 2015-10 

 

A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of  

Credit Card for the Public Works Deputy Director 

 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution 1996-45 adopted July 15, 1996, authorized the issuance of a City of Daphne 

credit card to certain departments; and 

  

WHEREAS, Public Works previously had a card issued under the name of Melvin McCarley, PW 

Superintendent and Mr. McCarley has retired from the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne now deems it necessary to authorize the issuance of an additional 

credit card for the Public Works Department for the Public Works Deputy Director for training and 

travel. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne that Section 1 

of Resolution 1996-45 is hereby amended to include the Public Works Deputy Director.  All other 

provisions of Resolution 1996-45 remain in full force and effect. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                        _________________________________ 

                                                                            Dane Haygood, Mayor 

                                                                            
 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

171



ORDINANCE 2015-01  
 
 

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS:  Fire Station #3 Renovations 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at Fire Station #3 to 
prepare the station to be operational; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget included an appropriation for $200,000; and 
 
WHEREAS,  after bids were received for Station #3 Renovations the total project 
cost for the low bid is $505,233; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds be transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve 
Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in 
the amount of $305,233 for the Fire Station #3 Renovations.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2015. 
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

172



ORDINANCE 2015-02 
 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2004-52 Job Classification Schedule 
 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 was approved and adopted on January 3, 2005 to establish the City 

of Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established the need for the following new positions: 

 

        GRADE 

 IT Technician      14 / NE   

 Safety Coordinator     18 / E 

 Young Adult Librarian    18/E 

 Marketing Coordinator    14/NE 

 Deputy Public Works Director   29/E 

 

And 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established the need to reclassify the following existing positions;       

         GRADE 

 Director, Convention Visitor’s Bureau and Civic Center   32/E         

 Accountant, Senior       23/E 

 Environmental Programs Manager     22/E 

 

And 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established the need to add the following classifications to the City of 

Daphne Job Classification Schedule: 

 

        GRADE 

 City Administrator     40/E 

 Management/Business Analyst   27/E 

 Communications Manager    24/E 

 Communications & Marketing Officer   24/E 

 Public Works Inspector    17NE 

 Facilities Manager     22/E 

 Community Outreach Specialist   14/NE 

 Code Enforcement Senior    14/NE 

 

And 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is a need for these new positions, the existing 

positions reclassifications and new classifications, and;  

 

 

 

173



ORDINANCE 2015-02                            JOB CLASSIFCATION SCHEDULE                          PAGE   2 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that 

the City of Daphne’s Job Classification Schedule is updated to reflect the noted new positions, existing job 

reclassifications and new classifications as itemized in the attached list and made a part hereof. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ______ day 

of ______________________, 2015. 

 

 
         

_________________________________ 

                                                                     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

174



CITY OF DAPHNE ALABAMA

                JOB CLASSIFICATION LISTING-GRADE ORDER

GRADE CODE TITLE FLSA GR

2 7545 SAIL SITE DRIVER N 2

7550 SAIL SITE WORKER N 2

2568 SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD N 2

4 0151 CUSTODIAN N 4

4521 GREENHOUSE ASSISTANT N 4

5 0028 EVENTS ASSISTANT N 5

7533 FITNESS ASSOCIATE N 5

7540 SAIL SITE MANAGER N 5

6 7532 ATHLETIC PROGRAM ASSOCIATE N 6

8070 LIBRARY AIDE N 6

0005 OFFICE ASSISTANT N 6

0141 PARTS TECHNICIAN N 6

0143 PUBLIC SERVICE WORKER N 6

0144 SOLID WASTE WORKER N 6

7 0152 CUSTODIAL SUPERVISOR N 7

8 8041 LIBRARY SERVICES TECHNICIAN N 8

9 0010 ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN N 9

0030 SALES ASSISTANT N 9

2549 ANIMAL SHELTER TECHNICIAN N 9

175



10 0015 ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY N 10

0026 EVENT SERVICES SUPERVISOR N 10

11 1043 ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN N 11

2548 ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER N 11

2330 BUILDING MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN N 11

2551 COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER N 11

2546 CORRECTIONS OFFICER N 11

0128 HUMAN RESOURCES TECHNICIAN N 11

5545 PLANNING COORDINATOR N 11

0142 PUBLIC SERVICE WORKER, SENIOR N 11

0145 SOLID WASTE WORKER, SENIOR N 11

12 2245 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER N 12

2030 MUNICIPAL COURT MAGISTRATE N 12

13 0020 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT N 13

4040 EQUIPMENT OPERATOR N 13

4540 GREENHOUSE COORDINATOR N 13

0521 HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT N 13

7050 MECHANIC N 13

6850 PERMIT TECHNICIAN N 13

0146 SOLID WASTE COORDINATOR N 13

14** 1105 IT TECHNICIAN N 14

0123 CREW LEADER N 14

8075 LIBRARY SERVICES COMPUTER TECHNICIAN N 14

7053 MECHANIC, SENIOR N 14

0459 PUBLIC WORKS/EMA ASSISTANT N 14

0025 EXECUTIVE SECRETARY N 14

** 2240 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, SENIOR N 14

** 0065 COMMUNITY OUTREACH SPECIALIST N 14

** 0056 MARKETING COORDINATOR N 14

176



16 0023 ASSISTANT CITY CLERK N 16

0027 AUDIO-VISUAL MANAGER N 16

5540 GIS TECHNICIAN N 16

8050 LIBRARY SUPV, CIRCULATION E 16

8040 LIBRARY SUPV, TECHNICAL SERVICES E 16

17 1023 ACCOUNTANT E 17

6840 BUILDING INSPECTOR N 17

2545 CHIEF CORRECTIONS OFFICER N 17

2550 COMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR N 17

0010 JAIL ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN N 17

2022 MUNICIPAL COURT ADMINISTRATOR E 17

** 6845 PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTOR N 17

0050 SALES MANAGER E 17

6870 SITE CONTAINMENT INSPECTOR N 17

18 2332 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR N 18

8068 CHILDREN'S LIBRARIAN E 18

7023 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR N 18

4522 GROUNDS SUPERVISOR N 18

0450 OPERATIONS MANAGER N 18

7515 PARKS MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR N 18

0130 PAYROLL/BENEFITS COORDINATOR E 18

5550 PLANNER E 18

4023 PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR N 18

8045 REFERENCE LIBRARIAN E 18

** 0135 SAFETY COORDINATOR E 18

** 8066 YOUNG ADULT LIBRARIAN E 18

19 7530 RECREATION PROGRAMS COORDINATOR E 19

0160 REGISTERED NURSE N 19

177



20 7525 ATHLETIC COORDINATOR E 20

4024 PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR, SENIOR N 20

1522 REVENUE OFFICER E 20

22** 6880 ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS MANAGER E 22

1100 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COORDINATOR E 22

** 2334 FACILITIES MANAGER E 22

23** 1022 ACCOUNTANT, SENIOR E 23

24** 0055 COMMUNICATIONS & MARKETING OFFICER E 24

** 0060 COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER E 24

26 0022 CITY CLERK E 26

27 6022 SUPERINTENDENT, PUBLIC WORKS E 27

5530 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY DEVEL. E 27

** 0110 MANAGEMENT/BUSINESS ANALYST E 27

29 8020 DIRECTOR, LIBRARY E 29

7520 DIRECTOR, RECREATION E 29

0036 DIRECTOR, CIVIC CENTER E 29

** 6024 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, PUBLIC WORKS E 29

32** 0036 DIRECTOR, CVB & CIVIC CENTER E 32

1020 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, FINANCE E 32

36 6822 BUILDING OFFICIAL E 36

1020 DIRECTOR, FINANCE E 36

0520 DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES E 36

5535 DIRECTOR, PLANNING E 36

178



38 6019 DIRECTOR, PUBLIC WORKS E 38

40** 0100 CITY ADMINISTRATOR E 40

** Job Descriptions & Pay Established or Revised, Not Council Approved Yet

0100 CITY ADMINISTRATOR E 40

0110 MANAGEMENT/ BUSINESS ANALYST E 27

0036 DIRECTOR, CVB & CIVIC CENTER E 32

0060 COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER E 24

0055 COMMUNICATIONS & MARKETING OFFICER E 24

8066 YOUNG ADULT LIBRARIAN E 18

6880 ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS MANAGER E 22

1022 ACCOUNTANT, SENIOR E 23

6845 PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTOR N 17

1105 IT TECHNICIAN N 14

2334 FACILITIES MANAGER E 22

6024 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, PUBLIC WORKS E 29

0065 COMMUNITY OUTREACH SPECIALIST N 14

0056 MARKETING COORDINATOR N 14

2240 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, SENIOR N 14

0135 SAFETY COORDINATOR E 18

179



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03  

 

    

Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located  

On the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

George Kalasountas 

 

 

 
 WHEREAS, George Kalasountas as the owner of certain real property located within the 

unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from 

RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to B-2, General Business; R-7(T), 

Townhouse and R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is on the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance 

Boulevard, and more particularly described as follows:  

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED TO B-2: 
 

COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 

00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM 

THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 
2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 605.05 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°36'45" WEST, 202.10 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°39'51" 

WEST, 210.15 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°37'12" WEST, 226.55 FEET; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 00°36'00" EAST, 407.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 

PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 00°36'00" EAST RUN 
300.13 FEET TO POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 

NUMBER 90 (80 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE ALONG THE SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE, RUN NORTH 88°55'49" EAST, 841.46 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°01'56" 
EAST, 124.50 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 

ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, 
AN ARC LENGTH OF 259.25 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 06°36'27" EAST AND 

MEASURES 258.77 FEET; THENCE ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 47.35 FEET, CHORD BEARS 

SOUTH 27°59'32" EAST AND MEASURES 47.35 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88°55'49" 

WEST, 1021.12 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 6.76 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS. 

BEING LOT 1, A REPLAT OF PROPERTY FOR GEORGE KALASOUNTAS #2, AS PER PLAT 
RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2520-F OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED TO R-7(T): 

 
COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 
00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM 

180



THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 

2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 
FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 181.07 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE 

CONTINUING SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, RUN 423.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

89°36'45" WEST, 202.10 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°39'51" WEST, 210.15 FEET; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°37'12" WEST, 226.55 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°36'00" 

EAST, 407.87 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 88°55'49" EAST, 1021.12 FEET; THENCE 
ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTWARDLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, 

AN ARC LENGTH OF 68.74 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 30°41'20" EAST AND 
MEASURES 68.73 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°23'29" EAST, 362.66 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10.06 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  BEING LOT 2, 

A REPLAT OF PROPERTY FOR GEORGE KALASOUNTAS #2, AS PER PLAT RECORDED 
ON SLIDE NO. 2520-F OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA. 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED TO R-1: 

 
COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 
00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM 

THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 
2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY 
HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 181.07 FEET; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00°23'29" WEST 362.66 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHEASTWARDLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 290.16 

FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 39°01'35" EAST AND MEASURES 289.49 FEET; THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 00°31'35" EAST, 137.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 1.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  BEING LOT 3, A REPLAT OF PROPERTY 

FOR GEORGE KALASOUNTAS #2, AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2520-F OF 
THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

WHEREAS, at the Special Called City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on 

October 30, 2014, the Commission considered said request and three motions were made and 

failed which resulted in a unfavorable recommendation regarding said property pre-zoning 

request; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on January 20, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-

zoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

181



 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from RSF-1, Single Family 

Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to B-2, General Business; R-7(T), Townhouse 

District and R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne and that the 

zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each 

other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant 

to Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective 

upon the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is 

not annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings 

as provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                    , 2015. 

                                           

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, 

City Clerk 

182



183



184



185



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2015-04  

 

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

Property Located on the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

George Kalasountas 

 

 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 23

rd
  day of September, 2014, being the owner of all real property hereinafter 

described, did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed 

into and become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on December 

15, 2014 concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

Special Called meeting on October 30, 2014 and a favorable recommendation with appropriate zoning as 

determined by the City Council was approved for the City Council to consider said request for annexation 

and said property; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 

00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM  

186



ORDINANCE 2015-   ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY HIGHWAY 90 & RENAISSANCE BLVD.        PAGE   2 

 
 

THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 

2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY 

HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 605.05 FEET; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 89°36'45" WEST, 202.10 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°39'51" WEST, 

210.15 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°37'12" WEST, 226.55 FEET; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 00°36'00" EAST, 708.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY NUMBER 90 (80 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE ALONG THE 

SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, RUN NORTH 88°55'49" EAST, 841.46 FEET; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89°01'56" EAST, 124.50 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SAID 

SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 259.25 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 
06°36'27" EAST AND MEASURES 258.77 FEET; THENCE ALONG A NON-TANGENT 

CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 
406.25 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 36°19'46" EAST AND MEASURES 404.41 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°31'35" EAST, 137.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 
AND CONTAINING 17.82 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

  

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit 

“A” and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ________ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, 

City Clerk 

187



ORDINANCE 2015-05 

 

 

GRANT MANAGEMENT FOR THE TIAWASEE CREEK COASTAL IMPACT 

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CIAP) AND NATIONAL FISH AND WILDLIFE 

FOUNDATION (NFWF) GRANT TIAWASEE CREEK RESTORATION 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council 

has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a 

part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City with large grants ($500,000.00+) has always sought out grant 

management assistance to ensure compliance with all federal, state and local grant 

requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City’s attorney and finance department recommends that a grant manager 

be hired to manage the Tiawasee Creek Restoration project; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include a   General Fund 

appropriation in the amount of $25,000.00 for the procurement of a grant manger to assist 

with its CIAP-NFWF grant project and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all 

agreements required for the completion of these projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 
 

 
             

_________________________________ 

                                                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

           

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

188



ORDINANCE 2015-06 

 

APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, DITCHES&INLETS ALONG 

COUNTY ROAD 13 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined that certain 

appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5 inches of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, the flumes, ditches and inlets along CR13 sustained severe damage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & 

Inlets along County Road 13 and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable (Construction- $313,356 + CE&I 

& Material Testing -$59,538 = $372,894 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, FEMA grant monies are available for 75% of the project cost ($279,670) for the Reconstruction of Flumes, 

Ditches & Inlets along County Road 13; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Alabama EMA monies are available for 12.5% of the project cost ($46,612) for the repair of the 

Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets along County Road 13; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts associated with this rain 

event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the 

public. 

2. This project is a qualifying FEMA and State EMA PA, Cat D project at a guaranteed 87.5 percent reimbursement 

($326,282). 

3. Ordinance 2014-24 appropriated $14,250 for engineering on this project. 

4. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of $32,362 from the 

General Fund for the repair of the Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets along County Road 13 cost not 

reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 
5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA for the 

reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ____ 

DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

 Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

Attest:        

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

189



ORDINANCE 2015-07 

 

Appropriating Funds for Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined 

that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 

budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, Piedmont Circle Drainage sustained severe damage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the Piedmont Circle 

Drainage Repairs and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable (Construction- $57,671 + 

CE&I & Material Testing -$27,076 = $84,747 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City provided some in-kind services, NRCS monies are available for 75% of a portion 

of the Engineering Fees($10,252) , and FEMA (75%) and EMA (12.5%) grant monies are available for 

the remainder of the project cost ($62,193) for the Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts 

associated with this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve 

the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. This project is a qualifying partial NRCS and FEMA and State EMA PA, Cat D project at a 

guaranteed 87.5 percent reimbursement ($72,445). 

3. Ordinance #2014-24 appropriated $7,875 for engineering on this project. 

4. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of 

$4,427 from the General Fund for the repair of the Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs cost not 

reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 
5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA 

for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the 

described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

  Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

Attest:        

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

190



ORDINANCE 2015-08 

 

Appropriating Funds for Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave  

(Project #04-2014-RE06) 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined 

that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 

budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, Rolling Hills Drive (South) sustained severe damage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the Rolling Hills 

Drive(South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave project and has determined that the bid as presented is 

reasonable (Construction- $578,798 + CE&I & Material Testing -$112,843 = $691,641 Total project 

cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, FEMA and State of Alabama EMA grant monies are available for Category D (Drainage) of 

the project cost ($192,705) for the Rolling Hills Drive(South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave  project; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 
1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts associated with 

this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and 

convenience of the public. 

2. This project is a qualifying FEMA and State EMA PA, for the Category D portion of the project 

($192,705). 

3. Ordinance #2014-24 appropriated $48,438 for engineering on this project. 

4. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of $450,498 

from the General Fund for the repair of the Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave  

project cost not reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 
5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA for the 

reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

Attest:       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

191



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2015-09 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO TRANSITION THE POSITION OF TREASURER TO THE 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 

 

WHEREAS, there exist certain overlapping duties and functions between the Office of 

the Treasurer and the Finance Director; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the position of Finance Director is currently vacant; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of the Treasurer is currently filled by the senior accountant who 

has performed admirably to service the needs of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current Treasurer has agreed to voluntarily resign from the position of 

Treasurer to be effective upon the commencement date of the new Finance Director; and 

 

WHEREAS, the position of Treasurer has heretofore been uncompensated; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes the 

duties and liabilities of the Office of the Treasurer demand that the position of Treasurer be 

compensated; said funding will enable the Treasurer of the City to confidently serve the City;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. Treasurer’s Salary 

 The position of Treasurer of the City of Daphne as shall be compensated in the amount of 

$12,000 per year for serving as Treasurer.  Treasurer compensation shall be paid in the same 

manner and method of any other City employee as determined by the policies and procedures of 

the City of Daphne.   

 

B.  Current Treasurer 

 The current appointed Treasurer has tendered her resignation as Treasurer of the City of 

Daphne effective upon the start date of the Finance Director.  Outgoing Treasurer shall remain as 

the Senior Accountant with the City of Daphne and shall be awarded a one-step pay raise 

effective as of the date of the authorization of this Ordinance.   

 

C. Proposed Treasurer 

192



 The City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to fill the Finance Director position at a 

salary level not to exceed Grade 36 Step 16.  The City Council hereby appoints the new Finance 

Director of the City of Daphne as Treasurer effective upon the start date of employment as 

Finance Director.  The Finance Director shall serve as Treasurer as long as the Financial Director 

is employed with the City of Daphne as the Finance Director. 

 

 SECTION II: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

                

Attest:       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

193


	Council Minutes 01.05.2015
	January 12 Work Session Minutes
	DHS Graduation Rate Proclamation
	2015-03 ORD prezone info
	2015-04 annex info
	Finance Minutes
	Finance Backup
	Buildings & Property January
	PWC Mtg Minutes 01-05-2015
	BZA minutes October
	Treasurer Resignation Letter: Suzanne Henson
	AT&T Agreement
	Shadow Barons
	2015-03 RES 319 Grant Support Resolution
	2015-03 RES backup
	2015-04 RES NFWF CIAP Grant Funds Combination
	2015-05 RES CIAP-Tiawassee Creek Restor-Adopting Purchasing Polices
	2015-06 RES Donation of Real Property to the City: Provisions Investment, LLC
	2015-07 RES FEMA-Flumes-Ditches-Inlets CR13-2015
	2015-08 RES FEMA-Piedmont Circle-2015
	2015-09 RES FEMA-Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade    Pave-2015
	2015-10 RES Credit Card - PW Deputy Director
	2015-01 - ORD - FS#3 Renovations
	2015-02 - ORD - Job Classification Schedule 2015 (5)
	Backup to 2015-02 - ORD
	2015-03 ORD PREZONE - KALASOUNTAS
	PREZONE - KALASOUNTAS - BACKUP
	2015-04 ORD ANNEXATION - KALASOUNTAS
	2015-05 ORD 2014 CIAP NFWF Grant Managment
	2015-06 ORD FEMA-Flumes-DitchesInlets CR13-April Rains 2014
	2015-07 ORD FEMA-Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs-April Rains 2014
	2015-08 ORD FEMA-Rolling Hills GradeDrainBasePave-April Rains 2014
	2015-09 ORD Treasurer Transition to Finance Director



